
 
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions of the Board 
Member, Cleaner Greener Oxford 
 
 
 

Date: Wednesday 29 June 2011 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Town Hall, Oxford 

 
For any further information please contact:  

William Reed, Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: 01865 252230 

Email: wreed@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we 
will no longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum 
internal and Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at in 
our Town Hall and Ramsay House (St. Ebbe's Street) reception areas and at 
public libraries. 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website - www.oxford.gov.uk/councilmeetings 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at 
www.oxford.gov.uk/ebulletins 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 
 

 

 
 

Delegated Decisions of the Board Member, Cleaner 
Greener Oxford 
 
 
 

Board Member Portfolio 
  
 
Councillor John Tanner Cleaner, Greener Oxford 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE 
PUBLIC BUSINESS 

 
 
  Pages 

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Guidance on personal and personal prejudicial interests is attached to these 
agenda pages. 

 

 

2 PUBLIC ADDRESSES 
 

 

 Members of the public may, if the Board Member agrees, ask a question of 
the Board Member on any item for decision on this agenda (other than on the 
minutes).  The full text of any question must be notified to the Head of Law 
and Governance by no later than 9.30 am two clear working days before the 
meeting.  Questions by the public will be taken as read and, at the Board 
Member’s discretion, responded to either orally or in writing at the meeting.  
No supplementary question or questioning will be permitted. 
 
The total time permitted for this item will be 15 minutes. 

 

 

3 COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES 
 

 

 City Councillors may, at the Board Member’s discretion, ask a question or 
address the Board Member on an item for decision on the agenda (other than 
on the minutes).  The full text of any question and the nature of any address 
must be notified to the Head of Law and Governance by no later than 9.30 
am two clear working days before the meeting.  Questions by councillors will 
be taken as read and, at the Board Member’s discretion, responded to either 
orally or in writing at the meeting.  No supplementary question or questioning 
will be permitted.  If an address is made, the Board member will either 
respond or have regard to the points raised in reaching her or his decision.  If 
the address is by the Chair of a Scrutiny Committee or her or his nominee 
then the Board member will be required to say as part of their decision 
whether they accept the Scrutiny recommendations made. 

 

 

4 ENERGY PROCUREMENT 2012 - 2016 
 

1 - 12 

 Lead Member: Councillor Tanner  

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development  

 This report provides an update on the savings made from the energy supply 
contract with the Local Authority South East Region buying consortia 
(abbreviated to LASER in the rest of this note) over the last two years.   The 
report recommends the Board member to:- 
 

(1) Grant project approval to use LASER for a further four years (2012 – 

 



 

2016) to tender the Council’s energy requirements; 
 

(2) Approve the purchasing route set out in Section 6 of the report and to 
use LASER to enter into new energy contracts based on flexible 
purchasing using the ‘purchase in advance’ option.  This will enable 
the Council to manage the ongoing price/risk in a volatile energy 
market – this is in line with the recommendations of the professional 
energy buying consortia; 

 
(3) Note that the greenest available energy will be sourced whenever it is 

economically viable to do so; 
 

(4) Delegate to the Director, City Services to enter into the new 
replacement energy contracts identified by the process for which 
agreement is south in (1) and (2) above. 

 

5 MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 
 

 

 If the Board member wishes to exclude the press and the public from the 
meeting during consideration of any of the items on the exempt from 
publication part of the agenda, it will be necessary for the Board member to 
pass a resolution in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 21(1)(b) of 
the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2000 on the grounds that their presence could involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as described in specific 
paragraphs of Schedule I2A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
The Board member may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

 



 

 

DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
What is a personal interest? 
 
You have a personal interest in a matter if that matter affects the well-being or financial 
position of you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association 
more than it would affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to which the matter 
relates. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close 
personal association positively or negatively.  If you or they would stand to lose by the 
decision, you should also declare it. 
 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to any interests, which you must 
register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal interest? 
 
You must declare it when you get to the item on the agenda headed “Declarations of 
Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still speak and vote unless it is 
a prejudicial interest. 
 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been appointed by the authority, or a body 
exercising functions of a public nature, you only need declare the interest if you are going to 
speak on the matter. 
 
What is a prejudicial interest? 
 
You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your 

personal interest is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interest; and 

 
b) the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a licensing or regulatory 

matter; and 
 
c) the interest does not fall within one of the exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 

the Code of Conduct. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial interest? 
 
If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw from the meeting.  However, under 
paragraph 12(2) of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about that matter, you may also make 
representations as if you were a member of the public.  However, you must withdraw from 
the meeting once you have made your representations and before any debate starts. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

                                                                               
 
To: Delegated Decisions of the Board Member, Cleaner Greener Oxford
    
 
Date:   29th June 2011         No:   
  

 
Report of: Heads of Environmental Development and Business 
Improvement 
 
Title of Report: ENERGY PROCUREMENT 2012 - 2016   
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To update the Board Member with the savings made 
from the energy supply contracts that the Council has had in place with 
LASER for the last 2 years and to request approval to authorise LASER 
to tender our energy requirements as part of a larger contract package 
for a number of public bodies for the period 2012 to 2016. 
         
Key decision? Yes 
 
Executive lead member: Councillor John Tanner 
 
Policy Framework: An efficient and effective Council 
 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1)  Grant project approval to use LASER, the public sector specialist 

energy buying consortium for a further 4 years (2012-2016) to tender 
the Council’s energy requirements. 

 
2)  Approve the energy purchasing route set out in section 6 of this 

report, and to use the LASER service to enter into new energy 
contracts based on Flexible Purchasing using the Purchase In 
Advance option.  This will enable the Council to manage the ongoing 
price/risk in a volatile energy market.  This is in line with the 
recommendations of the professional energy buying consortia.  

  
3)  The greenest available energy will be sourced whenever it is 

economically viable to do so.   
 
4)  Delegate authority to the Director for City Services to enter into the 

new replacement energy contracts identified by the process as set 
out in recommendations 1, 2 and 3. 

 

Agenda Item 4

1



 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets out the options for purchasing and managing our  

energy supply arrangements for up to the next four years, explains why 
energy procurement requires specialist support to leverage the best 
pricing and supply arrangements and recommends that the Council 
appoints LASER to manage our energy procurement requirements to 
do this on our behalf. 
 

1.2 LASER stands for Local Authority South East Region and is a buying 
consortia. 

 
1.3 The Council entered into a contract with LASER to purchase the majority 

of its electricity and gas in 2009.  This enabled the Council to take 
advantage of the group buying power of this local authority run consortium 
to source cost-competitive energy for its estate. CEB approved this as the 
most effective procurement strategy for our energy purchasing in April 
2009.  The Council has been managing price risk for large energy 
consuming sites through the Flexible Purchasing contract.  In addition 
smaller consuming sites (e.g. quarterly invoiced) have been purchased via 
a group fixed-term fixed price contract arranged via LASER to take 
advantage of bulk discounts possible via this route.  

 
1.4 The current flexible contracts were secured by LASER in 2008, following a 

tendering exercise in compliance with EU procedures to cover the supply 
period October 2008 to September 2012. The selected suppliers were 
British Gas (for gas supplies) and Npower (for electricity supplies). Oxford 
City Council moved its large energy contracts to the flexible arrangement 
with LASER in the October 2009 following CEB approval in April 2009.  

 
1.5 The next flexible procurement cycle is now being prepared by LASER for 

the subsequent four year period (October 2012 to September 2016) for 
which we are requested to indicate our commitment to continue this option 
for another four years. LASER has requested responses by the end of 
June 2011. LASER has recently undertaken a further tender exercise to 
appoint suppliers for the next period via an OJEU tender process. The 
successful suppliers for this next period are:  
 
Total Gas and Power (Gas); and 
Npower (electricity)   

 
 
2. Background  
 
2.1  The Council currently spends just under £2 million a year on gas and 

electricity across all of its buildings.  The expenditure is split as follows: 
  
� Gas - £0.51million  
� Electricity - £1.34million  

2



 The current budget for both categories in 2011/12 is £1.8million. The 
current split between Gas and Electricity is £0.5m and £1.3m. 

 
2.2 The contracts for electricity and gas are broken down by typical annual 

consumption and meter type at the site – with larger accounts currently 
on flexible contracts to manage price risk (as these make up the bulk of 
energy spend at the Council). The smaller electricity accounts 
(quarterly billed sites) have been on a group fixed-term, fixed price 
contract, as the recommended approach to take with smaller 
consuming sites at the time of the previous contract..  They are listed 
as follows with renewal dates (and typical annual consumption figures 
in kWh): 

  
� Gas (greater than 73,268kWh/2500therms) – covering 31 sites -  

Flexible Purchasing Contract-  renewal date - Oct 2012 (ca 
14,900,000kWh) 
 

� Electricity half hourly (HH) metered sites – covering 9 sites - 
Flexible Purchasing Contract- renewal date Oct 2012 (ca 
5,600,000 kWh) 
 

� Electricity monthly billed non-half hourly (MNHH) metered sites 
– covering 5 sites – Flexible Purchasing Contract-renewal date 
Oct 2012 (ca 800,000kWh) 
 

� Electricity – quarterly billed non-half hourly metered sites – 
covering ca 400 sites -  Fixed-term, Fixed price contract renewal 
date Oct 2012 (ca 1,800,000kWh)    

 
2.3 The Council is currently paying (via LASER) a weighted average of ca 8.5 

pence per kWH for large electricity sites (HH and MNHH) and ca 2.7 
pence per KWH for gas at the sites under the current flexible purchase 
contract (this price is valid until 30 Sept 2011 after which a new rate will be 
calculated for the final year of the current flexible purchase contract 
running from October 2011 to September 2012).  The quarterly billed 
electricity sites are billed an average of ca 9.6pkWh for the fixed-term 
fixed-price contract (expiring 30 September 2012).  

 
3.0 Savings  
 
3.1 The performance of LASER can be seen at Appendix 1. This Cabinet 
Office report assessed LASER’s energy purchasing performance for the 
period April 2009 to February 2011. The report demonstrates an exceptional 
and consistent performance achieved by LASER over the period. Under the 
flexible purchasing arrangement that Oxford City Council opted for (Purchase 
in Advance) LASER outperformed the benchmark price by 7% and 6% 
respectively for electricity and gas supplies. (See 3.2) 

   
 

3



3.2 In terms of the Purchase in Advance option performance, it is only 
possible to estimate any savings against LASER’s performance against 
benchmark (Appendix 1). For example, for electricity, taking the 
performance that we are buying 7% better than the benchmark, if the 
Council had bought at the higher rate it would have spent £38,080 per 
annum more (ie 7% increase in spend based on annual consumption/unit 
price of 6,400,000kWh @ 8.5p kWh) and for gas at 6% better than the 
benchmark, if the Council had bought at the higher rate it would have 
spent £24,138 per year (ie 6% increase in spend based on annual 
consumption/unit price of 14,900,000 kWh @ 2.7p kWh). The purchase in 
advance contract covers the bulk of electricity and gas consumption 
across the core Estate. 

 
3.3 In terms of savings from the Fixed term fixed price contract arranged via 

LASER for the smaller consuming (quarterly billed electricity sites) , the 
last reported savings for the quarterly bills was estimated at ca £48,000 
per year based on the rate that the Council paid in the previous contract. It 
is difficult to calculate the actual reduction associated with these accounts 
as it covers over 400 individual metered accounts across the Estate 
across a range of cost-centres, however the total electricity spend for 
09/10 was ca £118k under budget – so it is likely that some of this reduced 
energy spend was due to the reduced p/kWh rate during 09/10 alongside 
improved energy awareness across the council. LASER also stated that 
“With regards to accepting the price, we plan to negotiate Oxford as part of 
a bulk negotiation. Therefore, Oxford would benefit from other authorities 
energy requirements to reduce the price. We believe that this saves in the 
region of 5%”  

 
 
4.0 Energy Purchasing 
 
4.1 Since gas and electricity markets opened to competition in the 1990’s, 

the energy market has become a highly specialised field of 
procurement.  The complexity of the procurement options can create a 
risk if not managed by someone with the appropriate level of skills and 
expertise.  It is also time consuming due to the potential number of 
suppliers and types of contract available.  

 
4.2 In the previous non-volatile market it was possible to purchase energy 

without detailed specialist expertise.  However, since 2006 the market 
pricing has changed and specialist buyers monitor the market on a 
daily basis to ascertain the best opportunities to purchase energy, 
including advance purchasing.  Specialist support is now required to 
ensure value for money and appropriate risk management levels are 
applied. 

 
4.3 Several buying organisations, both private and public sector, can 

secure such contracts on our behalf.  Public sector organisations are 
favoured because they focus solely on public sector needs rather than 
trying to match the potentially competing objectives and requirements 

4



of private and public sector organisations.  In addition, these groups 
have a long experience of acting on behalf of the public sector and are 
therefore well versed in their requirements and processes.  Lastly, they 
will certainly comply with EU procurement rules. 

 
5.  What is Flexible Purchasing? 
 
5.1  Flexible contracts differ from historical arrangements in that the volume 

of use is covered through many purchases of components (“known as 
clips”) of the total requirement over a period of time, rather than all in 
one purchase.  

 
5.2  There are two options within their Flexible Purchase arrangements – 

Purchase in Advance (PIA),and Purchase within Period (PWP) 
 

� Purchase in Advance – all purchases are concluded prior to the 
supply period (1st October to 30th September) so that the price for 
the supply period is known by the start of the supply period. 

 
     Purchase Within Period – some or all purchases are completed 
within the supply period.  Generally, this is a more risky strategy but 
can result in better prices overall.  In such an arrangement, a target 
price is established for invoicing purposes and this is reconciled 
against actual prices either after each billing period or at the end of the 
supply period (usually one year). 

 
5.3  In each case, various control mechanisms are put in place, e.g. high 

and low price trigger points which are set to influence purchasing 
decisions; however any individual decision to purchase is not automatic 
but requires the agreement of two or more professional buyers 
employed by the consortia. 

 
 
6.0 Why use Flexible Procurement as an effective Energy Purchasing 

Route? 
 
6.1 Flexible procurement offers the Council a risk managed way of  

purchasing energy in a complex and volatile market.  It is 
recommended for all public bodies by the Pan Government Energy 
Review Project (Cabinet Office) 

 
6.2 The benefits of flexible procurement include: 
 

• Energy markets are one of the most volatile commodity markets.  The flexible 
approach provides access to wholesale markets, aggregation of public sector 
demand and enables a strategic market approach with long term hedging. 
   

• Wholesale energy prices are influenced by many different aspects.  For 
example: exchange rates, geopolitical issues and weather trends.  Purchasing 

5



energy over longer periods of time using a hedging strategy will somewhat 
mitigate the risk. 

 
6.3 Based on LASER’s performance over the past few years against the 

market rate it has performed consistently well in obtaining better than 
benchmark costs for energy (See Appendix).  

 
6.4 Based on the advice provided by LASER and the Council’s preference for 

knowing the energy price before the contract start date, it is recommended 
that the Council opt for Flexible Purchasing – Purchase In Advance (PIA) 
for our electricity and gas sites - (half-hourly electricity, monthly non-half 
hourly, and large gas points – see 2.2 for details of sites/types of account).  

 
6.5 In the past LASER recommended that the pragmatic solution for the large 

number of small consuming quarterly NHH sites was to negotiate a fixed 
term fixed price contract with the existing supplier using market analysis to 
determine the timing and duration of contract. Given changes in 
regulations however this is no longer an option and going forward, LASER 
now recommends that the NHH Quarterly sites are either tendered within a 
fixed price fixed term framework or included within the flexible purchasing 
framework as with the larger consuming sites .  

 
6.6 Further discussion with LASER’s procurement specialists advise that the 

former option (tendering within a fixed-priced fixed-term framework) would 
prove administratively burdensome with the supply industry possibly also 
only being willing to offer a one year or two year at best fixed price 
contract arrangement.  The volumes of supply we would be tendering for 
these smaller sites in today’s market are not seen as an attractive offering 
for the supply industry given that many are smaller consuming sites and 
would present additional administrative burdens to the supplier themselves 
for relatively low return (ie administrative process of setting up many 
individual low value accounts,). For that reason the uptake of interest via a 
fixed price fixed term tendering process is expected to be low for this 
option in today’s market and we may not be able to secure the best price 
or best supply option.  At the end of the contract period (most likely 2 
years maximum) the same procurement process would need to be 
undertaken each time with the corresponding burdens of potential change 
of supplier again – and the issues that can arise here (invoicing 
problems/errors, inconsistency in billing process and internal 
disruptions/increased administration) . The costs for carrying out this 
procurement option via LASER would be £22 per site per year (ca total of 
£9152/year across ca 416 sites paid for within the billing process – eg 
estimated at £5.50 per invoice per quarter)  

 
6.7 Bringing the Quarterly billed sites within the flexible procurement 

framework would mean we would not only benefit now from managing 
price risk for these sites – as we currently do with the larger supplies - but 
also reduce the administrative burden of a regular change of supplier that 
the former option would entail. As with the larger supplies, we would 
remain with the selected framework supplier from LASER’s EU tender 

6



process (Npower) for the flexible contract for a minimum of four years (this 
is also guaranteed to be Climate Change Levy exempt green suppliers – 
see Section 9.3).  

 
6.8 It is therefore recommended to bring the Quarterly billed sites within the 

flexible purchasing contract. LASER’s view is that they are unlikely to be 
able to deliver added value to the NHH quarterly sites on a fully managed 
basis (as with the larger contracts) under the flexible purchase option for 
these sites. It is recommended therefore to opt for the Procurement only 
service offering which will cost £27 per site per year (ca total of 
£11232/year across ca 416 sites paid for within the billing process – eg 
estimated at £6.75 per invoice per quarter). Therefore, for an additional 
£1.25 per invoice per quarter for the smaller electricity sites we will get the 
benefit of price risk managed energy purchase through flexible purchasing 
(as with the larger sites), supplier continuity for a minimum of four years 
and reduced administrative burden of continual tendering and changing of 
suppliers through a fixed term fixed price tendering process. 

 
 
7.0 Options 
 
7.1 Do nothing - this will result in Oxford City Council trading out of 

contract which will mean that the organisation is not compliant with EU 
Procurement regulations and will undoubtedly result in the Council 
spending significantly more on its energy procurement. 

 
7.2 Tender the Contracts Independently – This would mean going 

through a procurement exercise and independently trying to get the 
best deal in a complex market.  Officers within the Council do not have 
the specialist knowledge or buying power to achieve a satisfactory 
result.  In addition, buying fixed (spot) priced annual, or longer, 
supplies on a single day is a high risk strategy with a 1:220 chance 
(based on 220 working days in a year) of getting the best price (London 
Energy Project 2011). The Council also does not have the required 
purchasing volumes to be able to purchase energy in a flexible 
arrangement via the wholesale market so would not be able to 
purchase energy itself in this way. 

 
7.3 Use the Office of Government Commerce or another buying 

consortium - The OGC provides specialist energy procurement on 
behalf of central government and local authorities.  They are able to 
offer us the procurement service but do not offer the same level of 
ongoing support in relation to contract management as is offered by 
LASER.  There are also other consortiums that exist regionally across 
the UK, for example the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation 
(ESPO).  ESPO can offer a similar type of arrangement to LASER and 
has similar buying powers, however as highlighted in option 4, ESPO 
does not offer the invoice validation service, which is unique to LASER. 

 

7



7.4 Continue to use LASER for the majority of the Council’s energy 
purchasing - LASER specialises in energy purchasing for local 
authorities and offers a complete procurement service.  It is run by 
Kent County Council.  It manages tenders electronically and has a 
reputation for achieving excellent pricing.  LASER has a good 
reputation with the supply market.  Considerable savings are achieved, 
not just at the actual point of procurement but through the management 
of the contract and ongoing supplier relationship.  These services are 
offered as part of their ongoing service management and include: 

 
� Support with billing issues, including bill validation on the larger 

sites 
 

� Assistance with new sites and changes  
 

� Collection of the Climate Change Levy 
 

 (Please refer to the LASER performance data at Appendix 1) 
 
8.0 Risk Management 
 

8.1 There is a small risk that the recommended purchasing option is not 
the better option when calculated over the year if the wholesale utility 
market performs very differently from the prediction given by the 
consortia over the next few months.  This is a low to medium risk as 
these agencies have the most skill and expertise in the public sector 
and are highly skilled in this type of purchasing. 

 
8.2  At any point during the tender period the market could change so it is  

difficult to predict the outcome of the likely savings with any certainty 
until after the tender process is complete.   

 
8.3 The agencies are constantly checking the market and our energy  

purchasing will be a very small part of the larger volumes purchased.  
The consortia use the usage levels to bulk purchase in advance 
whenever there is any drop in the price even though we may not use 
the energy until a later date. 

 
8.4 It is proposed that we enter into ‘Flexible Purchasing - Purchase In 

Advance’ which enables LASER to purchase our energy requirements 
at the prices being offered leading up to the new contract start date at 
times whilst the pricing is offered at more competitive rates.      

 
9.0 Climate Change/Environmental Impact 
 
9.1 The energy buying proposal will have no adverse impact on our carbon 

dioxide emissions.  
 
9.2 The greenest available energy will be sourced whenever it is economically 

viable to do so.  It should be noted that under all energy/carbon reporting 

8



legislation any lower carbon content of electricity from renewables or other 
low carbon generation technologies is not acknowledged (i.e. we cannot 
claim any additional carbon savings from greener energy supplies).  

 
9.3 Under the current flex framework contract (2008-2012) with Npower the 

core supply is a green supply in the form of Climate Change Levy (CCL) 
exempt good quality Combined Heat and Power generation (QCHP).  The 
proposed flex framework presents an improved renewable energy offering 
for the October 2012 - September 2016 period with approx. 50% of current 
LASER portfolio volume coming from CCL exempt carbon free renewable 
energy with the balance being CCL exempt QCHP (as in the current 
framework agreement).  There is an aspiration from LASER to maintain 
the ratio against a potential increase in portfolio volume and to increase 
the carbon free renewable element when possible.   

 
10.0 Equalities Impact 
 
10.1 There are no equalities implications. 
 
11.0 Financial Implications 
 
11.1 The current budget allocated for energy procurement is predicated on 

what the Council spent last financial year. There is no inflationary 
element built in. The budget in 11/12 for gas and electricity across the 
council (including HRA sites) is £0.5m for gas and £1.3m for electricity 

 
11.2 After discussions with LASER the Council is hopeful that it will be 

purchasing both gas and electricity at a similar rate to what they are 
currently doing. If the rate increases it may be possible to draw on the 
Energy Fund to create a buffer against price increases.  The creation of 
an energy fund was agreed in the previous energy purchasing CEB 
report (April 2009). It should be noted that although agreed this fund 
has yet to be actioned and as such there is currently no balance 
available to act as a buffer 

 
12.0 Legal Implications 
 
12.1 LASER, which was set up specifically to manage energy procurement 

on behalf of local authorities, uses the EU procurement regime for all 
their procurement activity.  It therefore complies with both the Council’s 
own procurement requirements and external regulation. 

 
Appendices to report – Appendix 1 – Performance of LASER 

9



 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name:  Nicky Atkin and Paul Spencer 
Job title:  Commercial Manager, Climate Change Officer 
Service Area/Department: Business Improvement, Environmental 
Development 
Tel:  01865 252778 and 252238  e-mail:  natkin@oxford.gov.uk, 
pspencer@oxford.gov.uk 

 
List of background papers:  
Version number: 4 

10



1

Energy Purchasing Performance (Electricity)
• The Efficiency and Reform group within the Cabinet Office has developed metrics to help asses the performance of wholesale energy 

purchasing as part of its work on Centralising Category Procurement

• These aim to show the performance of  wholesale purchasing for a financial year (April to March) against a market average of prices1

achievable over the 12 months preceding the financial year.  No account has been taken of ‘purchasing windows’ or strategy to focus on direct 

financial performance effecting the budget holder over the financial year

• The wholesale cost of energy is 50 to 60% of the total delivered costs on average and is the greatest variable in terms of value for money

• ERG analysis has shown that the best public sector PBO‘s consistently outperform the market average which is considered class leading 

performance in either the public or private sectors for energy procurement

• ERG have independently compared the wholesale prices that Laser achieved against this benchmark as shown on the graphs below. These 

show the range of prices that were available from market  (black vertical lines) and the benchmark (red line) and achieved price of Laser

• While monthly performance has been variable (this is to be expected given the volatility of the market) it shows that over the 2 year period 

Laser has outperformed the benchmark price by 7% for the PIA strategy and 20% for the PWP strategy on average 2

PROTECT - IL1

Laser PIA Electricity Performance Laser PWP Electricity Performance

1. Analysis based on base load volumes purchased from the wholesale market

2. PIA and PWP strategy performance will vary year on year depending on market 

conditions.  Past performance may not be repeated 

11



2

Energy Purchasing Performance (Gas)
• A similar approach to assessing the performance of wholesale purchasing has been developed for gas 1

• The wholesale cost of gas is 60 to 70% of the total delivered costs on average and is the greatest variable in terms of value for money that can 

be influenced by the buyer / PBO

• ERG analysis has shown that the best public sector PBO‘s consistently outperform the market average.  This is class leading performance in 

either the public or private sectors for energy procurement

• ERG have independently compared the wholesale prices that Laser achieved against this benchmark as shown on the graphs below. These 

show the range of prices that were available from market  (black vertical lines) and the benchmark (red line) and achieved price of Laser

• While monthly performance has been variable (this is to be expected given the volatility of the market and October pricing for PIA) it shows 

that over the 2 year period Laser has outperformed2 the benchmark price by 6% for the PIA strategy and 30% for the PWP strategy based on a 

flat consumption profile

• It is notable that the performance for the winter heating period (Nov to March) which is the key consuming months for gas has been excellent 

PROTECT - IL1

Laser PIA Gas Performance Laser PWP Gas Performance

1. Analysis based on a flat profile purchased wholesale market

2. PIA and PWP strategy performance will vary year on year depending on market 

conditions.  Past performance may not be repeated 

12


	Agenda
	4 Energy Procurement 2012 - 2016
	CABINET OFFICE LASER PERFORM 0904 - 1102


